Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Palate Club, Inc.
595 Pacific Avenue
San Francisco, CA 94133
https://www.palateclub.com/

Up to $1,069,999.83 in Common Stock at $0.89
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.15

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: Palate Club, Inc.

Address: 595 Pacific Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94133
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: October 04, 2017

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.15 | 11,235 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,069,999.85 | 1,202,247 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $0.89

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $299.93

*Maximum Number of Shares Offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1935 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Commeon Stock.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses®
Time-Based:
Friends and Family Early Birds

Invest within the first 48 hours and receive 20% Bonus Shares.



Super Early Bird Bonus

Invest within the first week and receive additional 15% Bonus Shares.

Early Bird Bonus

Invest within the first two weeks and receive an additional 10% Bonus Shares.
Amount-Based:

$500+ | $30 wine coupon

Receive a $30 discount on your next order.

$1,000+ | Complimentary Tasting Kit

Get our best seller the red or white tasting kit (Value $59).

$2,500+ | 10% on your 1st subscription year

10% on all wine orders for 1 year (Value varies upon your purchases - On top of other
discounts)

$5,000+| 20% on your 1st subscription year

20% on all wine orders for 1 year (Value varies upon your purchases - On top of other
discounts)

$10,000+ | 20% on your 1st year + Invitation to 1 annual VIP tasting

We organize private VIP tastings with high-end wines (for investors only) in LA, SF,
NY, and Miami with co-founder Nicolas Mendiharat or co-founder Aubrey Terrazas

$50,000+ | All the above + Private advice for your wine cellar

Master Sommelier candidates co-founders Aubrey Terrazas and Jennifer Estevez will
personally advise what to buy for your own wine cellar, according to your Palate Club
taste profile.

*All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

Palate Club Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that are
committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc.
OWWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$.89 / share, you will receive 110 shares of Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110
shares for $89. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be



determined by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors' eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Palate Club is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware that is redefining
the experience of purchasing premium foods & beverages, with an initial focus on
wine. Palate Club operates as an online marketing and technology company partnering
with companies selling and delivering foods & beverages to the US market, currently
available for wine shipping to 42 States. Palate Club is mainly a direct-to-consumer
subscription service (but not only) which comes as an app-based experience featuring
blind tasting, sharing with friends, discovering new artisan products and education
about your personal taste.

We have achieved top rankings on app stores with wine related keywords such as
“wine club.” The company has developed a unique and proprietary data science model
using 200 traits found in wine and taste, that matches the best wines to your personal
taste, bringing back real value to the consumer without the hassle of guessing wine
labels.

The developed IP is fully owned by Palate Club.

Palate Club's team are passionate, successful repeat founders with decades of
experience in e-commerce, wine expertise, data science, online marketing and
building apps. The company's vision is to build the first personalized premium foods
& beverages platform, curating and delivering the best products on the market in
categories such as wine, cheese, chocolate, whisky or coffee and others.

Competitors and Industry

INDUSTRY

The wine industry is a $350B market worldwide, $70B in the US, growing an average of
2.5% year over year. The overall premium foods & beverages market is one of the
largest consumer markets globally.

The market opportunity of moving F&B online is gigantic since less than 10% is sold
online so far, while many factors are contributing to move consumers behaviors
online such as the pandemic or the need for better curation, product information and
personalization.This is particularly true for the wine market because of the dozens of



thousands of labels existing in the market.

COMPETITORS

Even though, to our knowledge, nobody in the market has our global approach for
premium foods, nor uses blind tasting with a specific data science as a core feature to

calculate and show your personal taste, there are numerous competitors in the wine
market:

Online stores and apps market leaders are wine.com and the Vivino app, claiming
$300m in annual revenue and $165m in venture funding, respectively.

Also, wine clubs from wineries in Napa/Sonoma wineries that use bulk juice for labels
such as Bright Cellars, First Leaf, and Winc.

Current Stage and Roadmap

CURRENT S5TAGE

The Company’s product is currently generating $10k sales monthly on average,
growing fast month over month with new distribution partnerships (www.elfster.com)
which just went live in December and with www.gifted.co which is in development and
expected to go live in early 2022,

FUTURE ROADMAP

The Company’s efforts for the next few years will be focused on growing our wine
subscribers first through:

(1) Online marketing growing our ambassadors program and influencers/live e-
commerce platforms.

(2) Planned distribution deals, to be partnering with grocery and gifting platforms as
well as hospitality businesses showcasing our experience.

(3) As soon as our growth engine is built on wine and reached about 5,000 subscribers,
Palate Club will start to offer other categories to its users, such as chocolate, cheese,
coffee or perfume, all categories related to your personal palate.

(4) Product enhancements on the data science part such as an index calculation on
product sustainability and healthiness as well as new features focused on product
transparency (more detailed information on what is in a bottle of wine or the amount
of sugar in certain chocolates for instance) and social events (blind tasting events
hosted by influencers and our ambassadors, in-person or virtually) will be the main
developments for 2022.

The Team

Officers and Directors



Name: Nicolas Mendiharat
Nicolas Mendiharat's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: CEO
Dates of Service: October 04, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Managing the company; Salary $5,000 (per month) and Nicolas
retains a 96.7% interest in the company.

e Position: Secretary
Dates of Service: October 04, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Secretary

e Position: Chief Financial Officer
Dates of Service: October 04, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Operating finances and budgets

Name: Yann Kronberg

Yann Kronberg's current primary role is with Zazmic Inc. Yann Kronberg currently
services 5 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: CTO
Dates of Service: October 04, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Management of engineering. Yann does not currently receive
salary compensation for their role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Zazmic Inc
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: July 01, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Managing the company

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Boostr Inc
Title: CTO
Dates of Service: January 01, 2015 - August 31, 2019
Responsibilities: Managing IT



Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Magicink
Title: CTO
Dates of Service: September 01, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Managing IT

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Atomic Agro
Title: CTO
Dates of Service: April 01, 2019 - March 31, 2020
Responsibilities: Managing IT

Name: Aubrey Terrazas
Aubrey Terrazas's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Marketing Officer (Contractor)
Dates of Service: November 15, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Management of marketing. Aubrey does not currently receive
salary compensation for their role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Terra Vigne LLC
Title: Founder
Dates of Service: February 01, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Consultant

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Getmyfunds.com
Title: Marketing Director
Dates of Service: July 01, 2020 - July 01, 2021
Responsibilities: Lead marketing strategy

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Omvino
Title: Co-founder
Dates of Service: March 01, 2017 - February 01, 2020
Responsibilities: Sommelier management, Online marketing strategy



Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it's a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any security purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with yvour death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the educational software development industry. However, that
may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed
The Company, is offering securities in the amount of up to 1 million U.S. dollars in this



offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum
amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons
relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the
Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to
find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, vour investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating
results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are likely to
be more favorable than the terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase
price per share.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

We are reliant on one main type of service
All of our current services are variants on one type of service, which is a software
managing several layers of data, back-ends and front-ends + consumer apps.



Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The common stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them.
However, you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have
agreed to appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “CEO™), or his or
her successor, as your voting proxy. You are trusting in management discretion in
making good business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the
event of a liqguidation of our company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash
remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow vour investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.
Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition
We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on



the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are competing against other recreational activities

Although we are a unique company that caters to a select market, we do compete
against other recreational activities. Our business growth depends on the market
interest in the Company over other activities.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

Palate Club was formed on October 4, 2017. Accordingly, the Company has a limited
history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be
made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated
with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results as the
Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the entry of
competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any shares once
our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. Palate Club has incurred
a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There is no
assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues
to pay dividends to the holders of the shares.

We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history

The Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively limited revenues. If
you are investing in this company, it’s because you think that Palate Club is a good
idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the product or service,
that we can price them right and sell them to enough peoples so that the Company
will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we
will ever be profitable.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

QOur ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FDA (Food and Drug Administration), FTC (Federal Trade Commission) or the TTB
(Tobacco Tax and Trade bureau) and other relevant government laws and regulations.
The laws and regulations concerning the selling of wine and other food products may
be subject to change and if they do then the selling of our product may no longer be in
the best interest of the Company. At such point the Company may no longer want to
sell product and therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations, advertising, retailing, and
distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties will fail to perform their



services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is possible that we will
experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their work that will
materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse to recover
damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’ operations
could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your investment could
be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the
data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service on Palate Club or in its computer systems could
reduce the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of investors and
companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a third-party
technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions of
services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on Palate Club could
harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our financial condition and
business.

Forward-Looking Statements

This offering include “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™). These
forward-looking statements include all statements other than statements of historical
facts and current status contained or incorporated by reference in this offering,
including statements regarding our future financial position, our business strategy,
and the plans and objectives of management for future operations. The words
“believe,” “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “expect” and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. We have
based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and
projections about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our
financial condition, results of operations, business strategy, short-term and long-term
business operations and objectives, and financial needs. These forward-looking
statements involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions related to: significant
regulatory uncertainty for digital assets; competition from other financial
infrastructure software providers; expectations of our revenue growth rate to decline
and anticipated downward pressure on our operating margin; fluctuations in our
operating results; failure to innovate and provide products and services that are useful
to users; and other risks, uncertainties and assumptions. We caution you not to place
undue reliance on the forward-looking statements contained in this offering, which
speak only as of the date hereof.

Risks Related to the Structure, Operation, and Performance of Palate Club

Palate Club was recently formed, has no significant track record and no operating
history from which you can evaluate Palate Club or this investment. Palate Club was
recently formed on October 4, 2017, has not generated significant revenues and has
little operating history upon which prospective investors may evaluate their
performance. In addition, the successful operation of Palate Club is dependent on the



ability of their management to continue to identify potential customers to license or
otherwise use their platform and buy their products. Palate Club’s failure to
successfully operate and build their business could result in investors losing most or
all of the value of their investment in the securities. No guarantee can be given that
Palate Club will attract additional customers to use their platform or buy their
products, that the value of the securities will increase or that the securities will
achieve their investment objectives. There is no guarantee that Palate Club is going to
be able to raise any additional capital in the future or that additional capital will be
available on acceptable terms. Because Palate Club lacks an operating history,
investors have no basis upon which to evaluate Palate Club’s ability to achieve their
business objective. Palate Club’s proposed operations are subject to all business risks
associated with a new enterprise. The likelihood of their creation of a viable business
must be considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and
delays frequently encountered in connection with the inception of a business
operating in a relatively new, highly competitive and developing industry. There can
be no assurance that Palate Club will ever generate any operating activity or develop
and operate the business as planned. If they are unsuccessful at executing on their
business plan, their business, prospects and results of operations may be materially
adversely affected, and investors may lose all or a substantial portion of their
investment in the securities.

The loss of key personnel, particularly our founders, could have a material adverse
effect on us.

Our success depends largely on the continued services of key personnel, particularly
Nicolas Mendiharat, our founder, directors, and our controlling shareholders, who
each have been key figures in pioneering Palate Club’s technology, offering, and
business model, and who have been essential in designing Palate Club’s products. The
loss of services of Mr. Mendiharat could diminish Palate Club’s business and growth
opportunities, and our relationships with key leaders in our industry, and could have a
material adverse effect on us.

Our business will be adversely affected if we are unable to attract and retain talented
employees, including sales, technology, operations and development professionals.
Our business operations will require highly specialized knowledge of the wine industry
and of technological innovation as it applies to the wine industry. If we are unable to
hire or retain the services of talented employees, including executive officers, other
key management, marketing, sales, technology, operations, and development
professionals, we would be at a competitive disadvantage. In addition, recruitment
and retention of qualified staff could result in substantial additional costs. The loss of
the services of one or more of our executive officers or other key professionals or our
inability to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel could have a material
adverse effect on our ability to operate our business.

We will be subject to significant litigation risk, particularly in the event of insolvency.
Many aspects of the Offering Model and our business involve substantial litigation
risks. We could be exposed to substantial liability under federal and state laws and
court decisions, as well as rules and regulations promulgated and/or direct actions



brought by the SEC, state securities regulators and other U.S. or international
regulatory agencies. We could incur significant legal expenses defending these and
other claims, even those without merit. In addition, an adverse resolution of any
future lawsuit or claim against us could have a material adverse effect on our business
and our reputation. To the extent we are found to have failed to fulfill our regulatory
obligations, we could lose our authorizations or licenses or become subject to
conditions that could make future operations more costly or impractical and that may
impair our profitability.

Potential breach of the security measures of the Site could have a material adverse
effect on Palate Club securities and the value of yvour investment.

The highly automated nature of the website through which Palate Club operates (the
“Site”) may make it an attractive target and potentially vulnerable to cyber-attacks,
computer viruses, physical or electronic break-ins or similar disruptions. The Site
processes certain confidential information about Palate Club’s customers and
operations. While the Company intends to take all commercially reasonable measures
to protect our confidential information and maintain appropriate cybersecurity, the
security measures of the Site, or our service providers could be breached. Any
accidental or willful security breaches or other unauthorized access to the Site could
cause confidential information to be stolen and used for criminal purposes or have
other harmful effects. Security breaches or unauthorized access to confidential
information could also expose us to liability related to the loss of the information,
time-consuming and expensive litigation and negative publicity, or loss of the
proprietary nature of Palate Club’s trade secrets. If security measures are breached
because of third-party action, employee error, malfeasance or otherwise, or if design
flaws in the Site software are exposed and exploited, the relationships between Palate
Club, and investors could be severely damaged, and Palate Club could incur significant
liability or have their attention significantly diverted from utilization of the
underlying assets, which could have a material negative impact on the value of the
securities offered or the potential for distributions to be made on these securities.
Because techniques used to sabotage or obtain unauthorized access to systems change
frequently and generally are not recognized until they are launched against a target,
Palate Club, the third-party hosting used by the Site, and other third-party service
providers may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate
preventative measures. In addition, federal regulators and many federal and state laws
and regulations require companies to notify individuals of data security breaches
involving their personal data. These mandatory disclosures regarding a security breach
are costly to implement and often lead to widespread negative publicity, which may
cause investors, customers or service providers within the industry to lose confidence
in the effectiveness of the secure nature of the Site. Any security breach, whether
actual or perceived, would harm our reputation and the Site and we could lose
investors and customers.

Possible changes in Federal/Local Tax Laws or the application of existing
Federal/Local Tax Laws may result in significant variability in our results of operations
and tax liability for the Investor.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is subject to change by Congress,



and interpretations may be modified or affected by judicial decisions, by the Treasury
Department through changes in regulations and by the Internal Revenue Service
through its audit policy, announcements, and published and private rulings. Although
significant changes to the tax laws historically have been given prospective
application, no assurance can be given that any changes made in the tax law affecting
an investment in any of the securities offered would be limited to prospective effect.
Accordingly, the ultimate effect on an Investor’s tax situation may be governed by
laws, regulations or interpretations of laws or regulations which have not yet been
proposed, passed or made, as the case may be. Furthermore, investors may reside in
various tax jurisdictions throughout the world. To the extent that there are changes to
tax laws or tax reporting obligations in any of these jurisdictions, such changes could
adversely impact the ability and/or willingness of our investors to purchase the
securities offered.

Negative publicity could adversely affect Palate Club and the value of the securities
offered.

Negative publicity about Palate Club or about their industry in general, including the
quality, security and reliability of Palate Club or its products could adversely affect the
reputation and the confidence in, and the use of Palate Club’s services and/or
products. This may in turn harm the value of your investment in the securities offered.
This may be true even if such publicity is inaccurate. Allegations of wrongdoing or
security breaches involving other prominent figures and entities associated with
Palate Club or Palate Club’s industry, such as employees, competitors, strategic
partners, suppliers, or investors, may also harm our reputation even though they in no
way involve us or relate to

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from officers and
directors of the company or their immediate family members.

Once the total amount of funds raised in this offering exceeds the minimum funding
goal, officers and directors (and immediate family members) of the company may
make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised
amount reflected on the campaign page.

Risks Related to Potential Conflicts of Interest

We do not have a formal conflicts of interest policy. Palate Club considers appropriate
measures to prevent conflicts between Palate Club’s affiliates and stockholders with
the holders of the securities offered. However, to the extent that such parties take
actions that are more favorable to other entities than the holders of the securities
offered, these actions could have a negative impact on our financial performance and,
consequently, on distributions to investors and the value of the securities offered.
Palate Club has not adopted and does not have immediate plans to adopt in the future
either a formal conflicts of interest policy or a conflicts resolution policy.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of
Stockholder Name Securities Security [Percentage
Owned Owned
Nicolas Mendiharat (please note the Common
ownership is on a fully diluted basis) 2,000,000 Stock 63.0

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Convertible Notes 1, Convertible Notes 3, Convertible
Notes 2, Convertible Notes 4, Convertible Notes 5, Convertible Notes 6, Convertible
Notes 7, Convertible Notes 8, Convertible Notes 9, Convertible Notes 10, Convertible
Notes 11, Convertible Notes 12, Convertible Notes 13, Convertible Notes 14,
Convertible Notes 15, Convertible Notes 16, Convertible Notes 17, Convertible Notes
18, Convertible Notes 19, Convertible Notes 20, Convertible Notes 21, Convertible
Notes 22, Convertible Notes 23, Convertible Notes 24, Convertible Notes 25,
Convertible Notes 26, Convertible Notes 27, Convertible Notes 28, Convertible Notes
29, Convertible Notes 30, Convertible Notes 31, Convertible Notes 32, Convertible
Notes 33, Convertible Notes 34, Convertible Notes 35, Service for Equity 1, Service for
Equity 2, and Common Stock. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the
Company will be offering up to 1,202,247 of Common Stock.

Convertible Notes 1

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
1 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $27,000.00

Maturity Date: February 07, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 54,026 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).




Convertible Notes 3

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
3 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $59,400.00

Maturity Date: February 17, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 120,599 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 2

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
2 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $64,800.00

Maturity Date; February 07, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 92,616 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 4

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
4 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $27,000.00
Maturity Date: May 02, 2020
Interest Rate: 4.0%



Discount Rate: 20.0%
Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 55,469 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 5

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
5 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $108,000.00

Maturity Date; June 06, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 225,074 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 6

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
6 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $32,400.00

Maturity Date: June 09, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.

All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.



As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 68,368 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 7

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
7 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $21,600.00

Maturity Date: June 14, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 45,874 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 8

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
8 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $54,000.00

Maturity Date: June 25, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 115,180 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 9

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
9 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $27,000.00



Maturity Date: June 27, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 58,212 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 10

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
10 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $21,600.00

Maturity Date: July 06, 2020

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $5,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $5,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 46,821 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 11

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
11 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $27,000.00

Maturity Date: January 10, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights



These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 41,985 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 12

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
12 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $54,000.00

Maturity Date: January 24, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 84,294 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 15

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
13 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $61,560.00

Maturity Date: February 07, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 96,837 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 14



The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
14 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $27,000.00

Maturity Date: February 13, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 42,846 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 15

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
15 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $27,000.00

Maturity Date: April 20, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 43,011 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 16

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
16 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $54,000.00
Maturity Date: April 22, 2021
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00



Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD
Material Rights

These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.

All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 86,554 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 17

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
17 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $72,384.84

Maturity Date: June 14, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 116,647 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 18

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
18 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $108,000.00

Maturity Date: June 21, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 175,839 shares



of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 19

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
19 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $54,000.00
Maturity Date: July 31, 2021
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 89,276 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 20

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
20 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding; $27,000.00

Maturity Date: August 25, 2021

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 44,982 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 21

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
21 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $54,000.00
Maturity Date: November 07, 2021



Interest Rate: 4.0%
Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 90,312 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 22

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
22 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding; $125,038.47

Maturity Date: February 10, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 210,733 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 25

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
23 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $269,205.48

Maturity Date: February 20, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $7,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights

These notes have a valuation caps of $7,000,000.



All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 336,507 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 24

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
24 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding; $106,027.40

Maturity Date: July 20, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 161,894 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 25

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
25 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,476.71

Maturity Date: November 12, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 16,412 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 26

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
26 are outlined below:



Amount outstanding: $36,626.30
Maturity Date: November 23, 2022
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000,
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 57,453 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 27

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
27 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $245,867.95

Maturity Date: November 25, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 387,439 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 28

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
28 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $26,065.75

Maturity Date: December 28, 2022

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights



These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 42,237 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 29

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
29 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $10,404.38

Maturity Date: January 17, 2023

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 16,954 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 30

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
30 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $217,985.75

Maturity Date: February 08, 20253

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 333,932 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 51



The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
31 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $62,1453.56

Maturity Date: March 01, 2023

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $8,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $8,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 104,159 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 52

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
32 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,876.71

Maturity Date: November 02, 2023

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $10,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 136,314 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 35

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
33 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $25,216.44
Maturity Date: November 03, 2023
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $12,000,000.00



Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD
Material Rights

These notes have a valuation caps of $12,000,000.

All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 28,682 shares of
Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 54

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
34 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,778.08

Maturity Date: November 11, 2023

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $10,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 137,844 shares
of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).

Convertible Notes 55

The security will convert into Preferred shares and the terms of the Convertible Notes
35 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $100,120.55

Maturity Date: January 10, 2024

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $12,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Maturity or equity financing of more than $2M USD

Material Rights
These notes have a valuation caps of $12,000,000.
All shares convert into Preferred Stock with an interest rate of 4% per annum.

As of the launch of this offering, these Convertible Notes would equal 115,271 shares



of Preferred Stock (currently unissued).
Service for Equity 1

The amount of securities outstanding is 380,347,
Material Rights

Service-for-equity agreement for $219,203.25 at $0.57632 per share to convert in
common shares

Service for Equity 2
The amount of securities outstanding is 57,502.
Material Rights

Service-for-equity agreement for $32,855.32 at an average share price of $0.57138 to
convert in preferred shares

Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 20,000,000 with a total of 9,612,500 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One vote per share. Please refer to the voting rights of securities sold in this offering
below.

Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in This Offeri

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ”), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with the full power of
substitution, to, consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i)
vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any
instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the
exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or
appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The
proxy and power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with
an interest. Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as
the Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of
the Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
19335 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the



Commeon Stock.

Stock Options

The company currently has an Equity Stock Option Pool of 1,000,000 shares. The total
amount outstanding listed above does not include this stock option pool. Out of the
1,000,000: 779,792 stock options have been issued, and 220,208 are unissued. None
have been exercised to date.

Rights of these stock options include:

(1) Right of first refusal & (2) Forced sale in the case of a board-approved merger or
sale of the company.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes
by proxy to the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your
voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:

e |nanIPO;



¢ To the company;

® To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $250,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 312,500
Use of proceeds: Equity for marketing and technology
Date: February 20, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $100,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working capital
Date: January 10, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $100,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: November 11, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $25,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: November 03, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $100,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: November 02, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $60,000.00



Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: March 01, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $210,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: February 08, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $10,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: January 17, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $25,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: December 28, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $235,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: November 25, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $35,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: November 23, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $10,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: November 12, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $100,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: July 20, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)



Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $250,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: February 20, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $116,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: February 10, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $50,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: November 07, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $25,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: August 25, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $50,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: July 31, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $100,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: June 21, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(h)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $67,023.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital

Date: June 14, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $50,000.00

Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: April 22, 2019



Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $25,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: April 20, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $25,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: February 13, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $57,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: February 07, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $50,000.00
Use of proceeds: Working Capital
Date: January 24, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Revenue

Revenue for fiscal year 2019 was $49,846, an increase of 85% compared to 2018



revenue of $26,945, reflecting our marketing and product development investments,
both leading to a greater market penetration and new customer acquisition.

Revenue for fiscal year 2020 was $19,241, or a decrease of 61% compared to 2019
revenue of $49,846. This decrease is an artifact of a change in business model and
accounting in 2020. Instead of purchasing, and owning the wine inventory we sell, we
have entered into a strategic partnership with Studio Beverage Group and Wine
Shipping in order for our strategic partners to purchase, own, and ship to our
customers the wine inventory that we previously owned. As a result, instead of
showing the revenue for the full selling price of the wine inventory, from fiscal year
2020 onward, we show only the gross margin from our strategic partners, who assume
most of the cost of sales. While this change of business model and accounting changes
our revenue, it doesn’t affect our gross margins, as both revenue and cost of sales are
transferred to our strategic partners. On a restated basis, to show what the revenue for
fiscal yvear 2020 would be without the change of business model and accounting, the
revenue would have been $67,325, or an increase of 35.1% compared to fiscal 2019,
reflecting a continued solid growth and market penetration of our products.

Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold (COGS) was $104,429 in fiscal vear 2019, an increase of $30,064 or
40.5% compared to fiscal year 2018, driven by the revenue increase over the same
period.

COGS in 2020 was 56,776, a decrease of 45.5% over fiscal year 2019. As for revenue,
this decrease is an artifact of the business model and accounting change related to
moving ownership of the inventory to strategic 3rd party partners. Without this
change, COGS would have been 104,860, or an increase of only 0.6% compared to
fiscal year 2019 despite a strong revenue growth, exemplifying the efficiency gain in
our operations during fiscal year 2020,

Gross Margin

Gross margin in 2019 was -$54,400, a decrease of $7,162 or 15.2% compared to fiscal
year 2018. Expressed in percentage of revenue, the gross margin in 2019 was -109.1%,
compared to -175.3% in fiscal year 2018, as we started improve our efficiency early in
our operations.

Gross margin in 2020 was -$37,536, an increase of $16,864 or 31% compared to fiscal
year 2019. Expressed in percentage of revenue, gross margin was -55.8% in fiscal year
2020, compared to compared to -109.1% in fiscal year 2019, reflecting our continued
improvement in operational efficiency.

Expenses

Operating expenses in 2019 were $607,696, an increase of $130,314 or 27.3%
compared to fiscal year 2018, mainly driven by a $94,679 or 108.4% increase in
marketing and advertising expenses compared to the prior year. This reflects the



significant investment the company has made in fiscal year 2019 to market and
promote our platform and products, and acquire new customers.

Operating expenses in 2020 were $669,388, an increase of $61,391 or 10.1% over fiscal
year 2019, again mostly driven by our investment in marketing and advertising leading
toa $122,051 or 67% compared to the prior year, partially compensated by a decrease
of $55,050 or 13.8% in general and administrative expenses, driven mostly by a
decrease compared to fiscal year 2019 of $42,041 in salary expenses, and $11,347 in
software expenses, both reflecting the savings from our change in business model
enabling us to shift resources and expenses to our strategic partners.

Historical results and cash flows:

Since our resources, revenues and customers were very limited at this point, and we
have mainly invested into our product, historical cash flows are not representative of
the future.

The Company is currently in its initial production stage and revenue generating. We
are of the opinion the historical cash flows will not be indicative of the revenue and
cash flows expected for the future because we currently are in the early stage of
penetrating our target market, and have not yet fully capitalized on our investments in
developping and marketing our produts. Past cash was primarily generated through
sales and equity investments. Our goal is to continue investing in our marketing and
product development to reach our first milestone in customer subscription with 5,000
subscribers, at which we will achieve break even.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of November 2021, the Company has capital resources available in the form of, a
revolving bank card credit of $ 10,000 with a current outstanding balance $0, a line of
credit of $50,000 with our service provider Zazmic Finance with a current outstanding
balance of $162,738 cash on hand.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations in order
to support our continued growth through investments in our marketing and in our
products.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised



from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, 50% will be made up of funds
raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 1 month. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$50,000 for expenses related to R&D and platform maintenance ($8,000), marketing
and advertising expenses ($10,000), sales fulfillment costs ($2,500), salaries and
related taxes ($9,500), travel expenses ($3,000), outside and professional services
($7,000), other general, administrative and operating expenses ($10,000).

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 8 years. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of $50,000
for expenses related to R&D and platform maintenance ($8,000), marketing and
advertising expenses ($10,000), sales fulfillment costs ($2,500), salaries and related
taxes ($9,500), travel expenses ($3,000), outside and professional services ($7,000),
other general, administrative and operating expenses ($10,000).

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital
including future capital raises, convertible notes, lines of credit, long term loans, and
positive cash flow from our operations after we reach brak-even cah flow.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Cerbillona
Amount Owed: $64,825.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2999

¢ Creditor: Nicolas Mendiharat (Shareholder Debt)
Amount Owed: $180,978.00



Interest Rate: 0.0%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2999

Creditor: Nicolas Mendiharat Deferred Salary Payable
Amount Owed: $40,028.52

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2999

Creditor: Zazmic Finance (Long Term Debt)
Amount Owed: $15,244.00

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Maturity Date: March 31, 2022

Creditor: Convertible Note Thomas France (including interests)
Amount Owed: $27,000.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: May 02, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Cameleon Invest (including interests)
Amount Owed: $64,800.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: February 07, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Isatis (including interests)
Amount Owed: $32,400.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: February 17, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note John Couch (including interests)
Amount Owed: $27,000.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: February 17, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Cerbillona (including interests)
Amount Owed: $27,000.00
Interest Rate: 45.0%

Maturity Date: May 02, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Annapurna (including interests)

Amount Owed: $108,000.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: June 06, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Julien Lecerf (including interests)
Amount Owed: $32,400.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%



Maturity Date: June 09, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Richard Qiu (including interests)
Amount Owed: $21,600.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: June 14, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note ANBRE (including interests)
Amount Owed: $54,000.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: June 25, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Sunwest Trust (including interests)

Amount Owed: $27,000.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: June 27, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Rami Richards (including interests)
Amount Owed: $21,600.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: July 06, 2020

Creditor: Convertible Note Silver Unigorn (including interests)
Amount Owed: $26,975.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: January 10, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note Rent4A (including interests)
Amount Owed: $53,874.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: January 24, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note ANBRE (including interests)
Amount Owed: $61,329.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: February 07, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note Laurent David (including interests)
Amount Owed: $26,882.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: February 13, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note John Spinale (including interests)
Amount Owed: $26,701.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: April 20, 2021



Creditor: Convertible Note Rodney Couch (including interests)

Amount Owed: $26,696.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: April 22, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note John Couch (including interests)
Amount Owed: $26,696.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: April 22, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note SPETSES (including interests)
Amount Owed: $47,454.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: June 14, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note MS1 (including interests)
Amount Owed: $23,727.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: June 14, 12021

Creditor: Convertible Note Robert and Renee Trust (including interests)
Amount Owed: $106,126.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: June 21, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note Structure Capital (including interests)
Amount Owed: $52,844.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: July 31, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note Winefunding (including interests)
Amount Owed: $26,353.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: August 25, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note ANBRE (including interests)
Amount Owed: $52,301.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: November 07, 2021

Creditor: Convertible Note ANBRE (including interests)
Amount Owed: $60,066.00

Interest Rate: 4.0%

Maturity Date: February 10, 2022



¢ Creditor: Convertible Note Rent4A (including interests)
Amount Owed: $60,066.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: February 10, 2022

e Creditor: Convertible Note Alto SAS (including interests)
Amount Owed: $101,797.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: July 20, 2022

¢ Creditor: Convertible Note Ashley Burt Hermann (including interests)
Amount Owed: $10,000.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: November 12, 2022

¢ Creditor: Convertible Note Etienne Turion (including interests)
Amount Owed: $35,146.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: November 23, 2022

¢ Creditor: Convertible Note Annapurna (including interests)
Amount Owed: $100,395.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: November 25, 2022

¢ Creditor: Convertible Note Robert and Renee Trust (including interests)
Amount Owed: $100,395.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: November 25, 2022

e Creditor: Convertible Note Serendipite (including interests)
Amount Owed: $35,138.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: November 25, 2022

e Creditor: Convertible Note |. Niklas Herriger (including interests)

Amount Owed: $25,008.00
Interest Rate: 4.0%
Maturity Date: November 28, 2022

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Nicolas Mendiharat
Relationship to Company: 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Loan from Nicolas Mendiharat-



owned Cerbillona entity of $60,000 with a 4% interest, with a current balance of
$64,825 as of 10/31/21

Material Terms: Long term debt with 4% per-annum interest and no set maturity
date

e Name of Entity: Nicolas Mendiharat
Relationship to Company: 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Reimbursable operational
expenses paid by Nicolas Mendiharat with a current open balance of $180,978.00
as of 10/31,/21
Material Terms: Long term loan with 0% interest and no set maturity

e Name of Entity: Nicolas Mendiharat
Relationship to Company: 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Nicolas Mendiharat Deferred
Salary Payable with a current open balance of $40,028.52 as of 10/31/21
Material Terms: 0% interest with no set maturity date

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $13,006,581.90
Valuation Details:

The company determined its pre-money valuation based on an analysis of multiple
factors. First, the valuation of the company is validated by the progress we made in
2021. We released new features such as the main taste clusters, upgraded our
technology with a dozen new iterations of the data science stack, and released new
upgraded services such as a completely redesigned funnel and a new app that has been
highly ranked for many wine keywords.

Second, our high retention rate among early adopters we believe is also a good sign of
product-market fit.

Third, we believe our service and technology are unique in the market. We're the only
company in the space, to our knowledge, that has created algorithms calculating
personal taste profiles with a model using 200 traits and descriptors found in taste and
wine. Our process is also one-of-a-kind because we use blind tasting as a core feature
combined with an app and a customer feedback loop.

Fourth, we've been featured in dozens of articles and podcasts as one of the most
innovative products on the market. What makes us also very different from
incumbents is that our concept and technology are designed for global food &
beverage products, not only wine, while the vast majority of our competitors are in the
wine business only.

Our valuation is therefore not comparable to other wine players, while it is in the mid-



range of seed-stage valuations capital raises in the US in 2021.

The company set its valuation internally, without a formal third-party independent
valuation. The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In
making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) all outstanding options, warrants, and
other securities with a right to acquire shares are exercised; and (1i) any shares
reserved for issuance under a stock plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation also takes into account anyv convertible securities currently
outstanding. The Company currently has $2,510,025 in principal, and $155,555.57 in
interests of Convertible Notes outstanding. These will convert into 3,878,552 shares.
The Company also has $252,058.55 in service-for-equity unissued shares outstanding
that will convert into 457,849 shares. These amounts have been included in the fully
diluted calculation. Please refer to the Company Securities section of the Offering
Memorandum for further details regarding current outstanding convertible securities
which may affect your ownership in the future.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.15 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o Working Capital
96.5%
We will use 96.5% of the funds for working capital to cover expenses for this
raise well as ongoing day-to-day operations of the Company.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,069,999.83, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o Marketing
55.0%
We will use 55% of the funds for online marketing as well for our Ambassador

Program, sales materials, and launching our franchise program.

e Research & Development

15.0%
We will use 15% of the funds raised for market and customer research, new

product development, obtaining a better science intellectual property, and
market testing.

o Company Employment
15.0%



We will use 15% of the funds to hire key personnel for daily operations,
including the following roles: Sales and Marketing. Wages to be commensurate
with training, experience and position.

e (Operations
11.5%
We will use 11.5% of the funds to cover our general operating expenses.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the

report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.palateclub.com/ (PalateClub.com/annual-reports).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.



Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/palate-
club

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Falate Club Inc.
San Francisco, California

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Palate Club, Inc. (the "Company,”), which comprise
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, and the related statement of operations,
statement of shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year ending December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical
procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 13, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concarn.

%@'hﬂrpart F%

November 19, 2021
Los Angeles, California




PaLaTe CLus INC.

BALANCE SHEET
(UNAUDITED)

As of December 31, 2020 2019

(USD 5 in Dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash & cash equivalents 197,919 5 6,689
Accounts receivable—net 5,429 -
|nventories - 29578
Prepaids and other current assets 16,108 1,079

Total current assets 219,455 37,345

Intangible assets 163,215 156,437

Total assets 382,670 193,782

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 95,635 34,941
Credit Card 2,768 1,100
Deferred revenue 9,881 4,023
Current portion of loan 19,183 -
Current portion of Convertible Note 934,023 410,000
Shareholder loan 205,978 191,326

Accrued interest on Convertible Note 73,745 40,197
Other current liabilities 48,122 17,912

Total current liabilities 1,389,334 699,500

Long term debt less current maturities 69,591 60,000

Convertible Note 496,000 499,023

Total liabilities 1,954,925 1,258,523

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock 96 93

Additional Paid In Capital 472,669 237,309

Retained earnings/{Accumulated Deficit) (2,045,020) (1,302,142)

Total stockholders’ equity (1,572,255) (1,064,740)

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 5 382,670 5 193,782

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PaLATE CLuB INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

(USD 5 in Dollars)
MNet revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses
General and administrative
Sales and marketing
Research and development

Total operating expenses

Operating income/(loss)

Interest expense
Other Loss/(Income)

Income/(Loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision/(Benefit) for income taxes

Net income/(Net Loss)

See gccompanying notes to financial statements.

2020 2019
19,241 5 49,846
56,776 104,246

(37,536) (54,400)
342,616 397,667
304,140 182,089

22,631 28,240
669,388 607,996
(706,923) (662,396)

35,955 31,331
(742,878) (693,728)
(742,878) $§  (693,728)




PaLaTe CLus INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQuUITY

(UNAUDITED)

Commaon Class B

Retained earnings/

Additional Paid (Acourmulated Total Shareholder
[in , SUS) Shares Amount In Capital Deficit) Equity
Balance—December 31, 2018 9,300,000 % a3 s 170,614 1 (608,414) (437,708)
Capital contribution 66,695 £6,695
MNet income/filoss) (693 728) (693 728)
Balance—December 31, 2019 9,300,000 53 237,309 5 (1,302,142) {1,064,740)
Issuance of stocks 312,500 3 235,310 235313
Shared-Bazed Compensation - - 50 50
Net income/iloss) (742.878) [(742.878)
Balance—December 31, 2020 9,612 500 % 96 5 472,669 5 (2,045,020) (1,572,255)

See accompanying notes to finandal statements.



PaLaTeE CLue INC.
STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

Far Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019
(USD 5 in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met i ncome/(loss) (742,878) (693,728)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided/{used) by operating octivities:
Depreciation of property 29,547 9,157
Shared-based compensation 50 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (5,429) -
Inventary 29,578 13,176
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 115,029) 8,897
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 60,694 32,577
Credit Cards 1,667 (844)
Deferred revenue 5,858 4023
Accrued interest on Convertible Note 33,548 29.317
Other current liabilities 30,211 15,532
Net cash provided/({used) by operating activities (572,184) 1581,892)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of intangible assets (36,324) {F0,601)
Net cash provided/{used) in investing activities (36,324) (70,601)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowing on Loans and Motes 28,774
Repayment of Loans and Notes (165,237)
Barrowing an Convertible Note 521,000 559,023
Borrowing on Shareholder loan 191,326
Repayment of Shareholder loan 14,652
Capital contribution 235,313 66,695
Net cash provided/{used) by financing activities 799,738 651,808
Changeincash 191,230 I6EE)
Cash—beginning of year 6,689 7.374
Cash—end of year 197,919 6,689
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest 35,955 31,331

Cash paid during the yvear for income taxes

OTHER NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for
lssuance of equity in return for note

Issuance of equity in return for accrued payroll and other liabilities

See accompanying nates to financial statements.



PaLaTe CLue InC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 3n1I 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Palate Club Inc. was incorporated on October 4, 2017 in the state of Delaware. The financial statements of Palate Club
Inc. {which may be referred to as the “Company”, "we”, "us”, or "our”) are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S5. GAAP"). The Company's headguarters are located

in San Francisco, California.

Palate Club is a wine club that uses artificial intelligence (Al), and an innovative supply chain model to bring top value
on premium wines to the American consumer, Palate Club is their customers’ private digital sommelier helping them
discover wines matched to their taste from artisan winemakers, who usually don't have access to the market. Palate
Club’s core product is their taste-matching technology, which can later be applied to cheese, whisky, chocolate, and
other consumer favorites,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US GAAP”). The Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company’s cash is deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit
accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the
Company's cash and cash eguivalents did not exceed FDIC insured limits.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross
customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and historical
experience of losses incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all
contractual payments due will not be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, the Company determined that no reserve was necessary,
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs related to finished goods which are determined
using an average method.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable, We look for indicators of a trigger event for asset impairment and pay special attention to any
adverse change in the extent or manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition. Assets are grouped
and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a
location level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future operating plans and projected
cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset.

Software Development Costs — Internal Use Software

For costs incurred in relation to development of software for internal use, the Company divides each project in the
following phases: (1) preliminary product stage, (2) application development stage, (3) postimplementation — operation
stage, and (4) upgrade and enhancement stage. In accordance with ASC 350-40: Internal-Use Software, costs during the
first phase are expenses, costs during the second phase are capitalized, costs during the third phase are expensed, and
costs during the fourth phase are analyzed to determine whether they pertain to maintenance, in which case they are
expensed, or improvements in functionality, in which case they are they are capitalized. Once the software is placed in
use, it is amortized over the useful life of the software.

Income Taxes

Palate Club Inc. is a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability
method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is provided on deferred tax assets if it is determined that
it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company records interest, net of any
applicable related income tax benefit, on potential income tax contingencies as a component of income tax expense,
The Company records tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized or paid, including in connection with the resolution of any related appeals or other legal
processes. Accordingly, the Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits based on the amounts
that are more likely than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company recognizes interest and/or
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense,
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For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND Decemeer 31, 2019

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company follows the provisions and the disclosure requirements described in ASU 2014-09 also referred to as Topic
606.

Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following steps:

Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of a contract with
a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation to the services to be transferred
can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified, the customer has the capacity and intention to
pay and the contract has commercial substance.

Identification of performance obligations in the contract: Performance obligations consist of a promised in a contract
(written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service {or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the same pattern of
transfer to the customer.

Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: Revenues are recognized when or as control of
the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

The Company earns revenues from the sale of its wine discovery service using Al and taste matching technology product
that can be applied to cheese, whisky, chocolate, and other consumer favorites.

Cost of sales

Before April 2020, cost of sale pertains to material cost of sales (inventory), fulfillment costs, and platform maintenance
and testing. After April 2020, cost of sales related to the inventory ceased (as the inventory transferred to a third party).

Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expense for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 amounted to 5304,140 and $182,089, which is included in sales and
marketing expense.

Research and Development Costs

Costs incurred in the research and development of the Company’s products are expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to both employee and non-employees in accordance with ASC
718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense

-8 -
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ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company uses the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such as cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments).

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used
in valuation technigques. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—0Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company’s assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

Subsequent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 19, 2021, which is the date the
financial statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2019, FASB issued ASU No. 2019-02, Leases, that requires organizations that lease assets, referred to as
"lessees”, to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those
leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. ASU 2019-02 will also require disclosures to help investors and other
financial statement users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases and
will include qualitative and guantitative requirements. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021,
and early application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the
financial statements and related disclosures,

In June 2019, FASB amended ASU No. 2019-07, Compensation = Stock Compensation, to expand the scope of Topic 718,
Compensation — Stock Compensation, to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services
from nonemployees. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 20189, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and early application is permitted.
The standard implementation did not have a material impact.

In August 2019, amendments to existing accounting guidance were issued through Accounting Standards Update 2019-
15 to clarify the accounting for implementation costs for cloud computing arrangements. The amendments specify that
existing guidance for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software also applies
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For YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND Decemeer 31, 2019

to implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract. The guidance is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021,
and early application is permitted. The standard implementation did not have a material impact.

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date, including
those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide
supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a
significant impact on our financial statements.

3. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019
Finished goods - 29578
Total Inventories 5 - $ 29,578

4. DETAILS OF CERTAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Account receivables consist primarily of trade receivables, accounts payable consist primarily of trade payables.
Prepaids and other current assets consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019
Prepaid expenses 16,108 1,079
Total Prepaids Expenses and other Current Assts $ 16,108 S 1,079

Other current liabilities consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019

Salaries and Wages Payable 40,029 13,343
Interest payable 5,032 2,625
Tax Liability 3,062 1,944
Total Other Current Liabilities 48,122 17,912

- 10 -
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, intangible asset consist of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019
Software devel opment 5 207,260 5 170,936
Intangible assets, at Cost 207,260 170,936
Accumulated amortization (44,046) (14,499)
Intangible assets, Net 5 163,215 5 156,437

Amortization expense for software development for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 was in the
amount of 529,547 and 59,157 respectively.

The following table summarizes the estimated amortization expense relating to the Company's intangible assets as of
December 31, 2020:

Amortization

Period Expense

2021 5 (29,547)
2022 (29,547)
2023 (29,547)
2024 (29,547)
Thereafter (45,028)
Total 5 (163,215)

6. CAPITALIZATION AND EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is authorized to issue 20,000,000 shares of common shares with par value of 50.00001. As of December
31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, 9,612,500 and 9,300,000 have been issued and are outstanding, respectively.

7. SHAREBASED COMPENSATION

During 2017, the Company authorized the Stock Option Plan (which may be referred to as the "Plan”). The Company
reserved 1,000,000 shares of its Commaon Stock pursuant to the Plan, which provides for the grant of shares of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards (performance shares) to employees, non-employee directors, and
non-employee consultants. The option exercise price generally may not be less than the underlying stock's fair market
value at the date of the grant and generally vest and become exercisable on the date of Grant. The amounts granted
each calendar year to an employee or nonemployee is limited depending on the type of award.

Stock Options

The Company granted stock options. The stock options were valued using the Black-5choles pricing model with a range
of inputs indicated below:

-11 -
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As of Year Ended December 31, 2017

Expected life (years) 10.00
Risk-free interest rate 2.91%
Expected volatility 75%
Annual dividend yield 0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United States
government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company's employee stock options.

The expected term of employee stock options is calculated using the simplified method which takes into consideration
the contractual life and vesting terms of the options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of
comparable public company's common stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other relevant
factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants, until such time that the Company’'s common
stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend yield assumption for options granted is based on the Company's history and expectation of dividend
payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock, and the Company does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Management estimated the fair value of common stock based on recent sales to third parties. Forfeitures are recognized
as incurred,

A summary of the Company’s stock options activity and related information is as follows:
Weighted Average Weighted Average

Number of Awards Exercise Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 729,792 5 - -
Granted - 5 0.00
Execised -
Expired/Cancelled - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 729,792 5§ - 7.95
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2019 729,792 5§ - 7.95
Granted 50,000 & -
Execised - 5 -
Expired/Cancelled - 5 -
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 779,792 & - 6.95
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2020 779,792 &% - 6.95

Stock option expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 was 550 and 50 respectively.

8. DEBT

Promissory Notes & Loans

During the years presented, the Company has entered into promissory notes & loans. The details of the Company's
loans, notes, and the terms are as follows:

-12 -
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Far thet Yaar Ended Decembar 2009 For thie Year Eaded Dadesshir W]

Principal Inberesy Bomradng Maturing Inbemres Barrurd Currens Kim-Cument Tatal Interess Angnied Currest Mean-Cu ek Tl
Db irtrarnn Ha: Arnceamm Aabe Ferand Date Eagenue Interes Fortign Fortlen Indebbednens Experae Irerest Pamar Poriban Indehied s
FFF lnan 508 Forgivenem: approvsd on 411473071 ] IE. T 1.00% e, 30205 IJ-HED.‘-!!I 5 -1 jL 19183 5 a5 IR TTd
Cerlillona 13 15,000 i 0% 37221 ML it 5 1900 5 1,E11 E B & 25,000 S 103 % 2kld § Bl &
Cerizilong ] 25000 1 00 L2215 Mok st |i M0 % W f mme % 1500 $ 100 5 Lem § mma g
Corlillona & 10,000 00N L0 N0 M 5 L] I £ 100 & 13030 - 4 & £ 10 & E
[Femal T § B i w00 ¥ EE- FUR IS 19183 §  BAS § IETT

Per the above table, the loans from Cerbillona, a company also owned by Nicolas Mendiharat (company’s CEQ) bear an
interest rate of 4%. Interest is being accrued and amounted to 52,625 as of December 31, 2019 and 55,032 as of

December 31, 2020.
The summary of the future maturities is as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020

021 5 79,183
2022 9,591
2023

Thereafter

Total 5 88,774

Owner Loans

During the Company borrowed money from the CEQ, Nicolas Mendiharat, The details of the loans from the owners is

as follows:
For the Year Ended December 2019 For the Year Ended December 2020
Principal Interest Maturity Current Mon-Current Total Current Mon-Current Total
Oraimer Amount Rate Date Partion Portion Indebtedness Portion Portion Indebtedmess
Mo set
Micolas hendiharat 5 201,141 000% matwrity |5 205978 5 205978 5 191326 5 191,326
Tatal £ 2055978 i - 5 205,078 5 191336 S - 5 191,326

The imputed interest for 0% interest loans was deemed immaterial and thus not recorded. Since there is no maturity
date set and thus the loan may be called at any time, the loan was classified as current.

-13 -
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Convertible Note(s)

The following are the details the convertible notes:

lor the Year Ended Decernber 2017

For the Year End ed Depember 203]

Prird pal Interest Bsturiey Currspe  MNop-Curant  lneret fuerued Current  Mon-Current  |Ateress Attrued
Mame AL Rate  Issue Dare Dare Parton Partlan Ex s Interes Parthan Partian Evpense  Inrares
Thirmad France ] 25000 4,005 HTIHLE T2 s 25000 5 - 4 LoD 5 1w 5 000 5 - ] 131 & 2,000
Carrelean nyes 5 (0,000 1.0 LTIHLE LR s GO0 5 5 2400 5 45115 GO.O0D 5 ] B 5 4,000
Isatis 3 30, 00K 400 AITEME ZAOA2N 5 30000 5 § L0050 2,247 5 OO0 5 5 158 5 2400
lhin Couch 5 75,000 4005 ATEME AN S S0 5 § Lm0 5 1,857 5 FS0O00 5 5 13 5 20
Carbilona ] 25,000 L1 52 18 S0 5 25000 & 5 Lo 5 LEEG | 5 E5.000 5 ] 334 5 2,000
AR E 5 100000 1,005 B E 2018 Eoa/ 3020 5 10000 5 5 4000 5 G279 5 100000 5 ] 1L7EL & 8,000
Julien Lecerd 5 30,0040 R B 52018 BN S 3] & 5 1LX0 5 18| 5 30000 & 5 Loy & 2,400
Focharg Lu 5 20,00 40N BLGEULE  BAESAIRN 5 nDoo 5 5 OS5 1282 5 AL000 0§ 5 wE 5 LB
AMBRE 3 50 00Kl 4008 BISSFIIE O BNS/A2N 5 GO0 5 § 2000 5 AMEA 5 0,000 5 5 e 5 4,00
Sunwest Trust 2t 25000 4. (Wr: 27/ HIE G2 S 2L000 5 4 1000 5 15125 X000 5 ] dE8 5 2,000
Rarmri Richards ] 20,000 4 (W T/ H01E TharH2l s 20000 5 21 [ 11805 X000 5 ] 410 5 1,600
Silver Unigem 5 250040 EEE 110BI1G 172073021 & - 5 - 5 a73 5 073 |5 X000 5 5 1002 &5 1,875
Fantds 5 S0 00 R 17243015 14321 & 5 SOLO0 5 1E858 5 1868 |5 SO000 5 5 005 5§ 3,874
AMBAE 5 57000 .5 Pl 272N 3 - 5 ST 5 EM3 5 2AE3 | 5 SR00D 5 ] 2288 5 1,329
Laurent David ] 25000 4. (W5 24137319 213021 5 - 4 25,000 5 BE79 5 Brfa | & 5000 5 ] L3 5 1.B&2
Jehin Spinale 2t 25000 4. (Wr: 42003015 4y & - 2t 25000 5 Gas 5 B89 5 X0 5 ] Lods 5 1,701
Fadrey Couch 3 25, 00Kl 0T U X L S Vo Tt o | 5 25000 5 (S ER BYE 5 Fa,000 & 5 L0 5 LEEE
lewhn Conch 5 75, 1K1 a0 23 A0 5 -4 5000 5 a5 RS 5 FE,000 5 L 1,0 3 1,FeS
SPETSES bo] 44 652 L 6/ 14/201% 614/ 2021] 5 - a 4465 5 79 5 e s HMES2 5 ] 1,792 5 2,072
IWiEL 5 21341 R Ef 14,3015 147321 & - 5 22341 &5 480 § 450 | & r2x1 5 5 Bos 5 1,385
Fabert and Renee T & L0000 R B 21,3015 EELFBI21] & 5 10000 5 2115 5 2115 | & 100,000 5 5 4001 5 =% S
structure Capital & S0 LK) a0 NENEILG REraanl s 5 SODO0 5 PR L BeE 5 L0000 & 5 Ab0a 5 234
winefunding 3 25, 00Kl 4MMBE  B/ISSENG BNEI21) 5 5 25000 5 ECS B 351 5 Fa,000 5 5 L0085 1,453
ARMDALC 2 L0000 4. W 13,7/ 115 13,72 & - 3 SO0 & ] T 280 |5 S000D 5 - ] 200z 5 2,01
AMBRE a3 SE 000 R 25100020 251072 & - & - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 LBOOD 3 205 5 2,065
Fanlds 5 CE 000 B A0y B0 20 15107302 & - 5 5 - 5 5 - 5 LRADOD 5 s 5 2,065
Al SAS bl 100, 00 A0 Ti2ndE020 a0 a2 5 - b = - 5 - o - 5 10O 3 1L79T o 1,797
Azhley Burt Harran 5 10,0080 1005 L1/12/3020 11A13A 3022 & - = 5 - & - =) - 5 1o 3 - ] -
ETmnne Turian ] 350040 400 1172378020 11535000233 & - 5 5 - & - 2 - 5 35,000 5 45 & 145
Anpaguraa 4 100,000 400 10725/ 3020 L1025 M2 & - 4 4 - 4 - 2] - 5 100000 5 25 & Jes
Rahert and Renee T 5 10K A008E 11JIRLID 110508022 & 5 5 -5 5 -5 10nmm & EL-CI e
Sarendipire 5 35, WK1 4008 11255020 117503027 5 - - A - % -5 - % zmooa & 13 % 145
Tartal $ 1,430,003 $ 0000 5 499023 §5 29,317 5 40187 5 SA,003 5 A9G000 § 33510 5 73S

The convertible notes are convertible into preferred shares at a conversion price. The conversion price shall mean the
lesser of (i) 80% of the lowest per share price of the Preferred Stock issued in such Qualified Equity Financing or (ii) the
quotient obtained by dividing (x) 58,000,000 by (y) the aggregate number of outstanding shares of the Company's
Common Stock as of immediately prior to the initial closing of the Qualified Equity Financing determined on a fully
diluted basis. Since the conversion feature is convertible into variable number of shares and does not have fixed-for-
fixed features, the conversion feature was not bifurcated and recorded separately.

The amounts outstanding were 5909,023 as of December 31, 2019 and 51,430,023 as of December 31, 2020. Accrued
interest is reflected in Convertible Notes Interest. The amounts of accrued interest were 540,197 as of December 31,

2019 and 573,745 as of December 31, 2020.
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9. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 consists of the following:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019

MNet Operating Loss S 221,331 S (174,633)
Valuation Allowance (221,331) 174,633
Net Provision for income tax 5 - 5 -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2020, and December 31,
2019 are as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2020 2019

MNet Operating Loss S (113,368) § (334,698)
Valuation Allowance 113,368 334,698
Total Deferred Tax Asset 5 - 5 -

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will
be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has determined that
it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and state net deferred tax
assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2020
and December 31, 2019. The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized could be adjusted if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020, the Company had federal cumulative net operating loss ["NOL")
carryforwards of 5379,212 and the Company had state net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards of approximately
5379,919. Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future income taxes will depend on
the Company's ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the carryforwards. The federal net
operating loss carryforward is subject to an 80% limitation on taxable income, does not expire, and will carry on
indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements if that position is more likely than not
to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the

position. As of December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain
tax positions.

10. RELATED PARTY

During the past period, the company received loans from CEQ, Nicolas Mendiharat which was used for reimbursable
expenses paid by Palate Club. The loan bears no interest rate and has not defined maturity date.

- 15 -
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During the past period, the company received 3 loans from Cerbillona, a company also owned by Nicolas Mendiharat,
in the aggregate amo